Earth Negotiations Bulletin
A RepE)r'Ei n.g -Se;vi.ce. fo-r I.En-vi ;oan;er;t and Ise:/el.of)rr;er;t Iile;\:]o.tia.\ti(.)ns
Onlineat http://www.iisd.ca/climate/sp13/

Vol. 12 No. 146

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD) Monday, 11 September 2000

HIGHLIGHTSFROM FCCC SB-13
INFORMAL MEETINGS
FRIDAY-SATURDAY, 8-9 SEPTEMBER 2000
Delegatesto theinformal meetings concluded their work ahead

of thethirteenth sessions of the FCCC subsidiary bodies (SB-13).
Informa meetingswere held on: the mechanisms; compliance;
capacity building; technology transfer; land use, land-use change
and forestry (LULUCF); FCCC Article4.8 and 4.9 and Protocol
Article 3.14 (adverse effects); and guidelines under Protocol Arti-
cles5 (methodological issues), 7 (communication of information)
and 8 (review of information).

INFORMAL MEETINGS

ADVERSE EFFECTS: On 8 September, del egates compl eted
discussionson the Co-Chairs' draft negotiating text. Several
Annex | countries, opposed by some developing countries,
suggested del eting aparagraph on actionsrel ated to policy options.
AOSI S presented aternative text for this section, suggesting the
deletion of the paragraph. UGANDA said those supporting its
deletion were avoiding commitment. SAUDI ARABIA stressed
theimportance of assisting economic diversificationin ail-
exporting devel oping countries, and supported tax restructuring in
Annex | Parties. With LIBYA, QATAR and VENEZUELA, he
supported discouraging fossil fuel productionin Annex | countries.
LIBYA underscored the externalities of nuclear energy. Onthe
preamble, SAUDI ARABIA suggested separating it between two
decisions, oneon FCCC Article 4.8 and Article 4.9, the other on
Protocol Article 3.14. A revised Co-Chairs' text will beavailable
Monday.

PROTOCOL ARTICLESS5, 7 & 8: On 8 September, dele-
gates completed discussions on the guidelinesunder Article 7. The
EU, opposed by the US, questioned the need for the section on
reporting on domestic enforcement. SAUDI ARABIA, for the G-
77/CHINA, opposed by the EU, suggested new headings on infor-
mation related to transfer of technology and additional financial
resources, and highlighted their textual proposal oninformation on
implementation of Protocol Article3.14. NEW ZEALAND
proposed anew heading on issuance and cancellation of assigned
amounts under Protocol Article 3.3 and 3.4. The group then
continued discussion on the draft guidelineson Article 8.

On 9 September, Parties continued deliberationson Part | of the
guidelinesunder Article 8. The G-77/CHINA bracketed most of
thetext, citing insufficient timeto consider it. The Secretariat
distributed new versions of the guidelines under Article 7 and of
Part 11 of the guidelinesunder Article 8, which had been prepared
by asmall drafting group. The Secretariat distributed draft deci-

sionson nationa systemsunder Article 5.1, methodologiesfor
adjustments under Article5.2, and guidelinesunder Articles 7 and
8.

CAPACITY BUILDING: Economiesin Transition (EITs):
On 8 September, participants considered the revised paper on
possible elements of adraft framework for capacity building in
ElITs. Participants gave their initial comments on the Purposes,
Objective and Scope and Implementation parts of the framework.

Participants highlighted the need for, inter alia: the framework
to provide aclear basisfor action; aresults-based approach to
capacity building to ensureits effectiveness; consideration of past
and present activities; elaboration of mutual responsibilities; and
consistency between any additional reporting obligationswith the
guidelines of national communications. HUNGARY, for the EI Ts,
noted the importance of defining atimeframe and emphasized the
need for an early start to capacity building.

Non-Annex | Countries: On 8 September, participants
discussed the draft elementsfor aframework on capacity building
in developing countries, and considered arevision of thetext on 9
September.

I ssuesraised included the need to: mobilize regional and sub-
regional institutions; strengthen existing institutions; provide good
guidance to the GEF; and take into account past actionsand
develop coherence with present activitiesin order to define activi-
tiesthat will support FCCC implementation.

AQOSIS said capacity buildingisadynamic and iterative
processthat will be augmented by experiencesfrom implementing
other aspects of the FCCC. She said the needs assessment should
not be used as an excuse to delay action on those needs that have
aready beenidentified. Delegates diverged over whether to delete
language on synergieswith other global environmental agreements
and the reference to the requirement that capacity building activi-
ties be results-based and implemented in a programmatic manner.

Chair Ashe said areport ontheinformal group’s meetings
would be presented at SB-13 and a contact group would be set up
to prepare adraft decision to which the framework would be
annexed.

L ULUCF: On 8 September, del egates discussed key areas of
contention asidentified by the Co-Chairsbased on discussions
related to the consolidated synthesis of Party submissionson
LULUCF. On separation of natural versus human-induced effects,
SWITZERLAND, opposed by CANADA, supported anegotiated
threshold to deal with the human-induced effects, which could also
be adjusted to deal with issues of uncertainty and permanence.

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Angela Churie <angela@iisd.org>, Jon Hanks <jon.hanks@iiiee.lu.se>, Lavanya
Rajamani <lavanya@iisd.org>, Malena Sell <malena@iisd.org>, Chris Spence <chris@iisd.org> and Lisa Schipper <lisa@iisd.org>. The Digital Editor is Andrei Henry

<andrei @iisd.org>. The Photographer is Leila Mead <leila@interport.net>. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Director of 11SD Reporting
ServicesisLangston James "Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government
of Canada (through CIDA and DFAIT), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom
Department for International Development (DFID), the European Commission (DG-ENV) and the Rockefeller Foundation. Genera Support for the Bulletin during 2000
isprovided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Devel opment Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign
Affairs, theMinistry of Environment and the Ministry of Foreign Affairsof Austria, theMinistriesof Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministriesof Foreign
Affairsand Environment of Finland, the Government of Australia, and BP Amoco. Thisissuewas prepared in cooperation with the UNFCCC Secretariat. The Bulletin can
be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage
Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily
reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate
academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Director of 11SD Reporting Services. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are
sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca. The satelliteimage was taken above Lyon ©2000 The Living Earth,
Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Monday, 11 September 2000

Vol. 12 No. 146 Page 2

Onédligibility of Article 3.4 activities, TUVALU drew attention
totheinsufficiency of existing data, suggesting it would bedifficult
to base a sound decision on such data. On limitation of debitsand
credits of additional activities, the US supported using athreshold,
opposed using acap, and said a possi ble phase-in approach should
provideincentivesto take action. On aggregati on-degradation,
AUSTRALIA said theissuewas not apriority, and said he could
support a process decision at COP-6.

On 9 September, Co-Chair Thorgeirsson introduced the new
Co-Chairs' text on elementsrelated to Article 3.3 and 3.4 that
would bethe basisfor deliberations during SB-13.

MECHANISM S: On 8-9 September, Parties considered text
on guidelines for implementing Protocol Article 6 (J1), and the
draft decision on Article 12 (CDM). Onthe COP/MOP, JAPAN,
CANADA, theUSand POLAND reiterated a preferencefor
existing Article 6 provisions. The G-77/CHINA urged the same
rigor for Jl asfor CDM. On participation, the EU outlined itstwo-
track approach. The USand NORWAY expressed interest inthe
proposal, with caveats. On monitoring, the EU, supported by
several Annex | countries, proposed an option consistent with its
two-track approach. SAUDI ARABIA, supported by CANADA,
bracketed reference to the CDM Reference Manual.

On supplementarity, the EU, G-77/CHINA and HUNGARY
emphasized domestic action asthe primary meansto fulfill
commitments. SAUDI ARABIA, withthe AFRICA GROUR,
suggested a cap of 25-30%. The EU elaborated on two formul ae:
for aceiling on net transfers and for aceiling on net acquisitions.
The USand CANADA emphasized concerns with quantitative
caps.

Onaninterim CDM, AUSTRALIA, CANADA, JAPAN, and
NORWAY underlined the need for aprompt start. SAUDI
ARABIA highlighted legal difficultieswith aprompt start, and
suggested expanding the Al J pilot phase to accommodate this. The
EU and SWITZERLAND said the CDM should commenceimme-
diately after COP-6 on a permanent rather than interim basis. The
AFRICA GROUP proposed astand-alone decision oninterim
arrangements. Parties differed on the use of apositivelist of CDM
projects. BOLIVIA and CANADA emphasized inclusion of
LULUCFintheCDM.

COMPLIANCE: On 8 September, Parties continued discus-
sionson the Co-Chairs’ text. On proceedings of the compliance
committee, the G-77/CHINA said proceduresrel ating to decision-
making, participation, conflict of interest and information sources
should be equally applicableto both branches. The US suggested
having two separate and compl ete procedures. SAMOA and the US
said the enforcement branch coul d address specific provisions and
thefacilitation branch could have broad jurisdiction. BRAZIL ,
opposed by AUSTRALIA and the RUSSIAN FEDERATION,
supported distingui shing between facilitation availableto Annex |
and non-Annex | Parties. NEW ZEALAND proposed an appeal
system. The USretained the option of no appeal procedure. With
BRAZIL, she said any appeal body should be limited to overriding
decisions. SAUDI ARABIA suggested the COP/MOP bethe
appealsbody.

On 9 September, Parties discussed outcomes and consequences
of non-compliance and adoption. The G-77/CHINA, opposed by
theUS, NEW ZEALAND and AUSTRALIA, suggested differenti-
ating between Annex | and non-Annex | Parties. Parties disagreed
on whether the facilitative branch should be able to publish non-
compliance or potential non-compliance, initiate the enforcement
procedure and issue cautions. AUSTRALIA, withthe RUSSIAN

FEDERATION and opposed by SAMOA, PALAU, the FEDER-
ATED STATES OF MICRONESIA and BRAZIL, argued against
binding consequences.

On Adoption, the US outlined three options. the COP recom-
mendsto the COP/MOP that the attached decision be adopted; the
COP recommends to the COP/MOP that the attached decision be
included in the decision on the second commitment period; or the
COP adoptsalegal instrument that entersinto force at the same
time asthe Protocol. The EU, opposed by AUSTRALIA, stressed
thelink between adoption and use of the mechanisms. A new text
will beavailable Monday.

TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER: Thisinformal group met on 8
and 9 September to consider draft text on aframework for action to
implement technology transfer under the FCCC. On capacity
building, some participants stressed the need to avoid duplication
of matters being addressed el sewhere and to enhance the capacity
of existinginstitutions. The US said capacity building for theiden-
tification of CDM projects could maximizetheir usefor technology
transfer.

On mechanismsfor technology transfer, parti cipants discussed
the GEF'srole, whether to establish an intergovernmental technical
advisory panel and afunding mechanism for technology transfer,
and the need for integrated approaches. Several participants said
ODA should not be used for technology transfer, asthiswould bea
distortion of development priorities. The REPUBLIC OF KOREA
noted that the discussion focused mainly on the demand side of
technology transfer and stressed the need to examine the supply of
technology. The GEF noted that existing programmes, such asthe
M edium-Sized Projects, could be used asameansfor transferring
technology. A revised Co-Chairs' text will be available Monday.

IN THE CORRIDORS

The week-long informal meetings ended with anumber of
participants expressing concern over slow progress on most i ssues,
given thelimited timefor COP-6 preparation.

Theinformal week also witnessed the formation of anew nego-
tiating group, the* Environmental I ntegrity Group,” whichincludes
Switzerland, the Republic of Koreaand Mexico. Theaim of the
group isto ensurethat its members can participatein smaller group
negotiationslikely to take place during critical eleventh hour talks
at COP-6. Observersaretaking a“wait and see” approach
regarding the possibleimpact of the new grouping.

This news coincided with Vanuatu’s announcement that the
LDCswill take group positions on issues such as FCCC Article 4.8
and 4.9 (adverse effects). Some suggest that thisreflectsthe
predictabledivergence of interestsand prioritiesamong sub-groups
within the G-77/China, readily apparent during the informals.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

WELCOMING CEREMONY: The opening ceremony for
SB-13 will take place at 10:30 amin Forum (Plenary 1). It will
include an address by French Prime Minister, Lionel Jospin.

SBI: SBI will meet at 11:20 am in Plenary | to consider organi-
zational matters. Following this, SBSTA will convene, also to
address organizational matters.

JOINT SBI/SBSTA: Thejoint SBI/SBSTA will meet at 3:00
pm and again at 7:00 pm to consider anumber of issues, including
adverse effects, the mechanisms, and capacity building.

SBSTA: SBSTA isexpectedto meet at 7:30 pmin Plenary |1 to
consider severa issues, including LULUCEF, Article5, 7 and 8 and
technology transfer.

For moreinformation on the day’s events, consult the notice
board.



